

A -

These calls
were not
made

THE WHITE HOUSE
WASHINGTON

November 9, 1972

MEMORANDUM FOR THE PRESIDENT

FROM: COMMANDER LARZELERE

Governor Rockefeller called you approximately 6:30 this evening.

Mr. Haldeman said you may wish to return this call.

H - an error
when I called him
he said he had
called election night
& that I had of course
talked to him then -

DRAFT TELEGRAM TO SENATOR McGOVERN
(Patrick J. Buchanan)

Your pledge of support for our continued efforts to achieve justice at home and a just peace in Asia and the world is greatly appreciated. After this difficult and arduous campaign, you and your devoted and capable wife, Eleanor, have the best wishes of the entire Nixon family in the years ahead.

Richard Nixon

After

I am deeply

I deeply appreciated your

Mrs. Nixon and I deeply
appreciated your ^{election} ~~wire~~ ~~of representation~~ ^{might}

After what I know must

have been ~~an~~ a long and
strenuous ^{and both your} ~~campaign~~ ~~of representation~~

we extend our best wishes for
a well-deserved rest!

The White House
Washington

1
2 WHD036 A VM LL6009 PD

3 SIOUXFALLS SDAK NOV 7 1028P CST 11 31

4
5 HONORABLE RICHARD NIXON
6 PRESIDENT OF THE UNITED STATES
7 WASHDC

8 CONGRATULATIONS ON YOUR VICTORY. I HOPE THAT IN THE NEXT FOUR
9 YEARS YOU WILL LEAD US TO A TIME OF PEACE ABROAD AND
10 JUSTICE AT HOME. YOU HAVE MY FULL SUPPORT IN SUCH EFFORTS
11 WITH BEST WISHES FROM ELEANOR AND ME TO YOU AND YOUR GRACIOUS
12 WIFE PAT. SINCERELY

13 GEORGE MCGOVERN

14 (1033P)
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

DRAFT TELEGRAM TO R. SARGENT SHRIVER
(Patrick J. Buchanan)

After this intense and difficult campaign, your personal and gracious good wishes both to the Nixon family, and for this Administration's efforts to achieve peace and justice here and abroad, are greatly appreciated. Both Pat and I send to you and your spirited co-campaigner, Eunice, our best wishes for the years ahead.

Richard Nixon

WHB 256(2153)(1-2211874313)PD 11/28/72 2124

105 IPWTBPZ MTWN

ZOZO 27277 2824833328 TDMT WASHINGTON DC 55 11-27 1118 EST

PMS PRESIDENT RICHARD M NIXON

WHITE HOUSE DC

I SEND YOU MY SINCERE CONGRATULATIONS ON YOUR RE-ELECTION. YOUR
VICTORY MUST BE A SOURCE OF GREAT PERSONAL SATISFACTION TO YOU
AND YOUR FAMILY. I WISH YOU AND THEM ABUNDANT GOOD HEALTH AND
HAPPINESS AND I PRAY THAT YOUR TERM MAY BE FRUITFUL, PEACEFUL, AND
PROSPEROUS FOR THE GOOD OF AMERICA AND ALL MAN KIND

SARGENT SHRIVER

[M4 gone]

Mr Nixon and I deeply appreciated your
election ~~and~~ night wire.

Jan + Mrs McGowan have our
very best wishes for a well
deserved rest after what I know
must have been a very strenuous
and tiring campaign. —

Shirley:

Some -
except ~~unless~~ insert

Curtis - for Mrs Mc

~~Shirley~~

~~J.~~

(Bakshian/Ehrlichman/Price) RP

September 25, 1972

PRESIDENTIAL STATEMENT: DEDICATION OF AMERICAN MUSEUM
OF IMMIGRATION, LIBERTY ISLAND, NEW YORK, September 26,
1972.

Speaking about the nature of our country, President Eisenhower once said that America "is best described by one word, freedom."

It is especially appropriate that we recall that description as we dedicate the American Museum of Immigration, at the base of this great national monument.

The idea for this museum was born in 1954, when a group of citizens met with President Eisenhower to suggest a permanent memorial to the millions of immigrants who came to these shores in search of freedom.

Now, eighteen years later, the museum is a reality. And for one who served with President Eisenhower, as I did, this occasion has a double meaning. We are witnessing today the completion of something that meant a great deal to a great American, President Eisenhower. And we are also paying tribute to millions of other American heroes -- many of those names may be forgotten but whose vision and sacrifice have added so much to our American heritage.

In dedicating this museum, we mark the fact that ours is a nation of many nations -- that, uniquely among all the nations of the world, ours draws its people from every continent, from every corner

of the world -- and what we have and what we are today is the result of what they brought to these shores.

So we dedicate this museum, not to a dead chapter of our history, but to a living ideal. The displays inside this building will remind us and our descendants of where many of our people came from. Every facet of American life today is filled with examples of what they did when they got here; of what they added to America, and of how they strengthened and enriched all of our lives, and continue to do so today.

The skyscrapers that dot the skyline of New York City; the railroads that connect the continent; the industrial might of modern America -- all of these are the work of immigrants and of the descendants of immigrants. All of these are monuments to the strong hearts and hands of ~~Irishmen, Blacks, Italians, Germans, Poles, Jews,~~ *men + women from all over the world, all nations, & all races, & all religions who* ~~Oriental and the many other groups that~~ came here and became proud

Americans. The walls of this museum, even if they were a hundred times this size, could not begin to house the full story of their contributions -- yet it is a story that must and shall be told, especially now, as we complete our second century as a Nation and prepare to celebrate our bicentennial.

America has often been called a melting pot, perhaps because it has forged the cultures and traditions of many lands into a strong new alloy -- an American alloy. But let us never forget that one of the

finest things about our country is that it does not force its people into a narrow mold of conformity. America is a rich mosaic of many cultures and traditions, strong in its diversity. Each new immigrant has added another piece to the mosaic of American life -- a fresh perspective and a fresh appreciation of what it means to be an American.

Edouard de Laboulaye, the French patriot who inspired the idea for the Statue of Liberty and who persuaded the sculptor Bartholdi to create it, looked upon the monument not only as a symbol of the love for freedom shared by the French and American people, but as a monument to the spirit of freedom itself -- a spirit that beats in the hearts of people everywhere.

The words he used to describe the Statue of Liberty should also serve to describe this museum we dedicate today: "...a symbol that braves the storms of time. It will stand unshaken in the midst of the winds that roar about its head and the waves that shatter at its feet."

The American ideal has also braved the storms of time. And it always will, as long as we keep alive the spark of freedom, ambition, opportunity and self-respect; as long as we keep alive the faith and the commitment that transformed the poor, the oppressed and the down-trodden of the earth into proud, free citizens of the United States.

#

SUGGESTED AGENDA

- | | | |
|------|----------------------------------|--|
| I. | 8:00 - 8:05 a.m.
(5 minutes) | Introduction
(The President) |
| II. | 8:05 - 8:20 a.m.
(15 minutes) | The Economy
(Herb Stein) |
| III. | 8:20 - 8:30 a.m.
(10 minutes) | The Budget
(Cap Weinberger) |
| IV. | 8:30 - 8:45 a.m.
(15 minutes) | Spending Ceiling Legislation
(George Shultz & Charles Walker) |
| V. | 8:45 - 8:55 a.m.
(10 minutes) | General Discussion with
Questions & Answers |
| VI. | 8:55 - 9:05 a.m.
(10 minutes) | Senate Report
(Hugh Scott) |
| VII. | 9:05 - 9:15 a.m.
(10 minutes) | House Report
(Jerry Ford) |

*(Take in the mth in its
white paper in its
most extreme
aspects)
multi-band
hitting about
attending
bridge
Dennis
halfway*

Agenda proposed for Aug 8 (1972) GOP Leadership Mtg

THE WHITE HOUSE
WASHINGTON

September 21, 1972

THE PRESIDENT HAS SEEN...

MR. PRESIDENT:

Here for your approval and/or
comments are the proposed guest
lists for the Douglas-Home and
Gromyko Dinners.

Alex

PROPOSED GUEST LIST FOR DOUGLAS-HOME DINNER (SEP 29)

1. The President
2. Sir Alec Douglas-Home
3. Chancellor Anthony Barber
4. Lord Cromer
5. Secretary Rogers
6. Secretary Shultz
7. Secretary Laird
8. Secretary Peterson
9. Ambassador Bush
10. Director Richard Helms
- ~~11. Mr. Flanigan~~
12. Dr. Kissinger
13. Chairman Arthur Burns
- ~~14. General Haig~~
15. Assistant Secretary Stoessel
- ~~16. Mr. Sonnenfeldt~~

7:30

who
Add to 16
include other
govt people
& me more on
British side

PROPOSED GUEST LIST FOR GROMYKO DINNER (OCT 2)

1. The President
2. Foreign Minister Gromyko
3. Ambassador Dobrynin
4. Minister Vorontsov
5. Secretary Rogers
- ~~6. Secretary Shultz~~
- ~~7. Secretary Butz~~
- ~~8. Secretary Peterson~~
- ~~9. Secretary Richardson~~
- ~~10. Ambassador Smith~~
11. ~~Mr. Flanigan~~
12. Dr. Kissinger
13. Assistant Secretary Stoessel
14. ~~General Haig~~
- ~~15. Mr. Sonnenfeldt~~

Cut to
(10) or (8)
Mayfield

RECOMMENDED TELEPHONE CALL

TO:

Gene Vaughn
Pan Am Airline Captain

RECOMMENDED BY:

Chuck Colson

PURPOSE:

To congratulate him on his alertness and courage in foiling the attempts of a Vietnamese hijacker to divert his Saigon-bound airliner and 153 passengers to Hanoi.

BACKGROUND:

Forty-five minutes out of Manila, on the 2-hour run to Saigon, a South Vietnamese student attempted to hijack Pan Am Flight 841. He demanded that the pilot divert to Hanoi.

Captain Vaughn told the hijacker that there was not enough fuel to get to Hanoi and that he would have to stop in Saigon. Simultaneously, he dropped the jet to a 4000-ft. altitude to minimize the decompression effects should there be an explosion.

Upon landing in Saigon, Captain Vaughn told the military control tower that under no circumstances was the aircraft to be allowed to depart. Vaughn had already made up his mind to resist.

Earlier, prior to the flight's initial takeoff from San Francisco, a retired policeman going to work for an American company in Saigon gave his .357 Magnum pistol to the pilot for safekeeping ... as is customary in such cases. So, while on the ground at Saigon, Vaughn had the pistol returned to the policeman surreptitiously. Moments later, he told the hijacker that he was having

He's probably still in Saigon. Signal operators are making a discreet check.

Congratulate for courage & coolness in handling a potentially very dangerous situation.

trouble understanding him -- and asked him to come a bit closer. At the proper moment he grabbed the slightly-built youth and shouted to the retired policeman, "Shoot the son of a bitch". The unidentified policeman willingly complied. He fired 5 times and killed the hijacker. "Then, said Vaughn at a press conference later, "I took the fellow by the back of the neck and threw him out of the aircraft like a football. He was already dead. "I just couldn't stand to have him in my airplane. "

TALKING POINTS:

1. I want to congratulate you on your alertness and courage.
2. Your example should go far toward deterring would-be hijackers.
3. We might have had another Pueblo incident on our hands.

Hijacker Killed in Saigon; Tried to Divert Jet to Hanoi

*South Vietnamese Student, Believed to
Be From U.S. and Seeking 'Revenge'
for Bombing, Is Shot by Passenger*

PRESERVATION



United Press International

AFTER HIJACK WAS FOILED: Saigon guards cover the body of hijacker slain aboard Pan American jetliner.



Associated Press

PILOT TELLS STORY: Capt. Gene Vaughn describing how he held the hijacker while a passenger shot him dead.

September 7, 1972

RECOMMENDED TELEPHONE CALL

THE PRESIDENT HAS SEEN... *[Handwritten mark]*

TO: Dr. Joseph Harrison Jackson
President, National Baptist Convention USA, Inc.
Location: Sheraton Hotel - Fort Worth, Texas
817 332-3151

RECOMMENDED BY: Ron Ziegler *RZ* (C. Colson and B. Brown concur)

BACKGROUND: Dr. Joseph Harrison Jackson, President of the National Baptist Convention USA, Inc., the largest black organization in America (5 million) last night and today again endorsed you for President at the National Baptist Convention in Fort Worth, Texas. Dr. Jackson, who is pastor of the historic Mt. Oliver Baptist Church in Chicago, also endorsed you in 1968.

Couldn't reach him

Jackson is a Democrat, highly thought of by President Johnson, the party and the black community. He denounced McGovern for permitting "trusted and respectable members of a party to be cut out of a Democratic National Convention," and said in his endorsement of you:

"Mr. Nixon has not done everything we have wished him to do, but I think what he has done has been good for the country."

Jackson received a standing ovation from the 21,000 black delegation. It is also ironic to note that the endorsement came the day of McGovern's visit to Dallas.

Because of his strong ties with the Democratic Party, Bob Brown feels Jackson is a very definite plus in supporting your re-election. Incidentally, Bob will be going to Fort Worth tomorrow to attend the Convention.

Since the media has given limited recognition to black endorsement of you, I feel that a phone call will serve to demonstrate our real appreciation of his political support.

TALKING POINT: Your support always means a great deal to me -- and I want to thank you for your public appearances and other activities in my behalf.

THE WHITE HOUSE

WASHINGTON

October 4, 1972

THE PRESIDENT HAS SEEN *✓*

TELEPHONE CALL RECOMMENDATION

TO:

AL KALINE
Detroit Tigers

RECOMMENDED BY:

HENRY C. CASHEN II *HC*

(Colson concurs)

PURPOSE:

On Tuesday, October 3, the Detroit Tigers clinched the title for the Eastern Division in the American League. Al KALINE, who has been a long-time supporter and campaigner for you, had probably the most tremendous finish of his career during a regular season. Over the past several weeks he has hit over 500 and was a tremendous inspiration for the Tigers' strong finish. He is the most seasoned veteran in the American League.

Kaline campaigned hard in 1968 and has agreed to do the same whenever possible before the 1972 election.

TALKING POINTS:

1. That you congratulate him on his tremendous finish in leading the Tigers to the Eastern Division title in the American League.
2. That you were glad to read that it was Kaline who made the final outpour that clinched the title for the Tigers.
3. Express your appreciation for his help in the past and indicate that you hope that you will see him during the campaign.

*Pls. Al
Congratulate on a great
finish by the Tigers
and particularly by you.
The real reason
champions always come
through in the
clutch. That
Detroit is only
you will go down
in history as
one of the best
of all time.
With best regards
to Jim Northrup
I hope Salish &
other members of
the team I have
met.*

*Protecting
Security*

DOUGLAS-HUME DINNER

(Original Guest List)

Blue Room
Black Tie
7:30 pm

1 The President

2 Hume

3 Barber

4 Cromer

5 Rogers

6 Shultz

7 Laird

~~8 Peterson~~

9 Bush

10 Helms

~~11 Flanigan~~

12 Kissinger

13 Burns

~~14 Haig~~

15 Stoessel

~~16 Sonnenfeldt~~

John Hay writing

(16) Fred Whitney

Delete 3

add 1 Brit

2 US

14 Kamm
15 Lynn

H -

8-26-72

As you know we are to send watches to M. R. and those who secured the nomination. (The watch is probably for men - but it is ~~small~~ small enough for women too)

In addition I want a Certificate of Appreciation to go to all who participated in the convention. Be generous in this - Cover all speakers, presiders - musical organization + those who appeared at the Youth Rally + other events.

This may run to a hundred or so - but it is by far the easiest way for us to show appreciation, after all if we do it for other appearances we should do it for the convention -

In addition - will you give me the names of 5 or 6 who worked in arrangements + who deserve a call - even though they were not ~~for~~ publicized at the convention.

11 To Certificate of appreciation
with grateful appreciation for {his
her}
Contribution to the success of the 1972
Democratic National Convention

RATIONALE OF NEW ORGANIZATION

1. _____ It is the President's policy that insofar as possible all interdepartmental and inter agency issues should be resolved by the principal Secretaries and not the White House
2. _____ The President wishes to vest in the five "Assistants to the President" line functions which equivalent Assistants did not have in the first term. They will be called on to make management and policy decisions without reference to the President in accordance with guidelines which the President will establish. The five Assistants to the President will be expected to act as vice principals in relation to the Department Secretaries. That is, they will act on the President's behalf.
3. _____ A Cabinet Secretary should not be encouraged to anticipate either free access or frequent consultation with the President. Rather, his views will be transmitted to the President either in writing or via a principal secretary or Assistant depending on the nature of the matter.
4. _____ Cabinet secretaries will be requested to delegate to principal secretaries substantial authority concerning the operation of their Departments. This delegation will be express and precise and, in each case, will be made in advance.
5. _____ Control over selection of personnel will be retained by the President and delegated from time to time to his Assistants and particularly the Director of the OMB.

H. Connally & President:

Connally - Court reconfirm 8 years

Try through Congress?

People want Congress & President

Towers & Brent
People didn't like
L.B. to Mandate

6. _____ Policy proposals originating in the Departments will first be reviewed by the Assistant having jurisdiction and may be referred to the appropriate policy council before final decisions of the Assistant on the question of referring to the President.
7. _____ The essence of the new organization is the concept that secretaries and principal secretaries are the President's men and not the creatures of their departments. Every Cabinet officer must strive to retain this cardinal orientation. Every appointee of Cabinet rank will be expected to be the President's man in the Department and not the Department's advocate to the President.
8. _____ Cabinet meetings will be rare. Cabinet officers will be expected to act in concert with their colleagues in policy groups and policy councils as well as in informal ad hoc committees in the resolution of common problems and the preparation of proposals of common interest.
9. _____ Each Cabinet officer should be reminded that all policy decisions in the Executive branch are reserved to the President ultimately. All Cabinet officers and other Presidential appointees have derivative capacity only. Thus, no decision making power resides in any policy group, policy council, in any Secretary, principal Secretary or Assistant except as expressly delegated by the President. In the absence of expressed delegation it must be assumed that the President personally will make the ultimate decision.

*Except as
prescribed by
 statute,*

OMB

1. _____

The President will seek a reorganization plan to rename the OMB the Office of Executive Management. This new name will symbolize the new emphasis the President wishes placed on management by this office. The OEM will be charged with increased duties in goal setting, analysis, evaluation and recommendations to the President with regard to programs, projects and activities of the Executive branch.

2. _____

The OEM will, as a first order of business, engage in a comprehensive analysis of existing domestic programs.

It will be prepared to demonstrate factually the case for repeal of those programs found wasteful or unworkable. Incoming Cabinet officers should be prepared to lend the fullest assistance to this effort.

3. _____

The OEM will exercise comprehensive personnel control within all departments. Each department will contain a personnel organization established by the OEM and reporting to it.

See Problem

COUNTERPART ORGANIZATIONS

1. _____ Public affairs, Congressional relations, General Counsel and personnel organizations within the Departments will be coordinated by and answerable to their White House counterparts as well as to their department and agency heads.

It will be the responsibility of the respective Assistants to the President to insure fidelity to this organizational concept.

MISCELLANEOUS

1. _____ Cabinet Secretaries and agency heads will be held accountable for unauthorized disclosure of information and documents. Each should immediately institute procedures to insure the integrity of classified and confidential information.

2. _____ In the case of the principal secretaries, particularly, and to a lesser extent in other departments, the Under Secretaries or Deputy Secretaries will play increasingly important roles. Cabinet Secretaries will be expected to vest in their Number Two men broad capacity to operate and manage the department. (In the past some problems have been encountered where department or agency heads have interposed themselves between Under Secretaries and the White House).

3. _____ All department and agency heads will be expected to make the required showing concerning conflict of interest regardless of previous clearance. The Counsel to the President, John Dean, should be contacted immediately in order that announcements of appointment are not unduly delayed.

Each appointee will be contacted by Bill Timmons in the near future regarding confirmation strategy and timing. It is contemplated that all nominations will go forward to the Congress on January 3, 1973.

4.  _____ It is expected that in the new term a more careful regulation of government travel expenses will be instituted by the OEM. Some Cabinet officers have had the custom of employing government owned aircraft for travel. Where departments own or control aircraft it is proposed that prior OEM clearance will be required for such use in the future.

Foreign travel cut
"principal Secretary"

✓

PERSONS INVITED TO OPEN HOUSE, SATURDAY, DECEMBER 19, 1970

- 45 MILITARY PERSONNEL (Assigned to the White House) and families.
- 30 EXECUTIVE PROTECTIVE SERVICE PERSONNEL (White House Police) and families.
- 20 SECRET SERVICE PERSONNEL and families.
- One-half of the NATIONAL SECURITY COUNCIL STAFF and families.
- One-half of the DOMESTIC POLICY STAFF and families.
- One-half of the WHITE HOUSE and RESIDENCE STAFFS.
 - Mail Room
 - Gift Unit
 - Correspondence Section
 - Telephone Operators
 - Administration and Records
 - Messenger Service
 - West Wing Offices
 - East Wing Offices
 - Etc.

Presidents had a staff of 4 in 32

Used to receive in oval office
& gift.

we can't get them in
oval office
① can't get in W H -

Director - J. W. H.

~~Director~~

Make everybody feel

he counts -

you are the W.H.

~~tearfully quite call~~

a tour -

a letter -

**RICHARD NIXON PRESIDENTIAL LIBRARY
DOCUMENT CONTROL SHEET**

ITEM REMOVED FROM THIS FOLDER

A RESTRICTED DOCUMENT OR CASE FILE HAS BEEN REMOVED FROM THIS FILE FOLDER. FOR A DESCRIPTION OF THE ITEM REMOVED AND THE REASON FOR ITS REMOVAL, CONSULT DOCUMENT ENTRY NUMBER 2 ON THE DOCUMENT WITHDRAWAL RECORD IN THE FRONT OF THIS FILE FOLDER.

NATIONAL ARCHIVES AND RECORDS ADMINISTRATION

RECOMMENDED TELEPHONE CALL

TO:

Dr. Gilbert Klaperman, Rabbi
Congregation Beth Sholom
Lawrence, New York

RECOMMENDED BY:

Henry C. Cashen, II (Colson concurs)

BACKGROUND:

Dr. Klaperman is a very prominent New York Rabbi who recently wrote to you on August 22 indicating his strong support for your re-election. The Rabbi is past President of the New York Board of Rabbis, is Chairman of the Board of the Emet World Academy in Jerusalem, and presently Chairman of the Greater New York Conference on Soviet Jewry.

He is very influential in the Jewish community throughout the United States; but as I indicated, he is a very strong advocate for the Jewish community on behalf of the release of Soviet Jews.

He will be addressing a group of between 5 to 10 thousand Jews in the garment district of New York City on Wednesday, August 30, at 12:00 noon EDT

TALKING POINTS:

- 1) Thank him for his letter of support.
- 2) Congratulate him on the great job he is doing in representing the religious interests of the Jewish community.
- 3) Indicate your hope that he will continue to work with the Administration in achieving human rights on behalf of Soviet Jewry.
(It is recommended by the National Security Council that you avoid any personal indication on your part to intervene on behalf of the Russian Jews. The Rabbi will probably push for some sort of a personal commitment from you, but even without this a telephone call will be most helpful to his cause in openly and actively supporting your re-election.)

August 30, 1972